
 

 

     NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Regular Meeting 

 
Board of Directors 

Aquatic Science Center 
 

To Be Held 
March 4, 2010 

11:30am-2:30pm 
 
 

San Francisco Estuary Institute 
7770 Pardee Lane 

First Floor Conference Room 
 

Oakland, CA 94621 
Phone (510) 746-7334 

 
The Business Meeting will be preceded by an informational discussion session with 
the SFEI Board of Directors at 11:30am, followed by lunch at 12:30pm 

 
Joint Science Discussion with SFEI Board 
Mercury TMDL Implementation: What have we learned so far? Steps 
taken to reduce risks to human health and biological resources.  
 
 
ASC Business 

 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Public Comments 

 
3. Consent Items 

a) Approval of Agenda 
b) Approval of December 14, 2009, Meeting Minutes  

(Attachment 1) 
 

4. Information and Discussion Items 
a) Quarterly Report (Attachment 2) 
b) New Initiatives and Opportunities 



 

 

• Linkage between CV SALTS and San Joaquin Basin 
Monitoring Strategy Implementation 

• Aquatic Pesticides Monitoring 
• Consideration of CVCWA Membership 

 
5. Action Items 

a) Approve Work Plan for Strategic Planning Effort 
(Attachment 2) 

b) Approve new element and amend 2009/10 Program Plan: 
San Francisco Bay Risk Reduction Program 
(Attachment 3) 

 
6. Future Meeting Agenda Items and Meeting Schedule 

 
7. Adjournment 

 



 
Attachment 1 
 
 
 

 
Minutes of the Aquatic Science Center Board of Directors 

December 14, 2009 
San Francisco Estuary Institute 

7770 Pardee Lane, Floor 2 
Oakland, CA 

 
Members Present: 
Bruce Wolfe, San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board 
Doug Craig, Bay Area Clean Water Agencies 
Pamela Creedon, Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board 
Darrin Polhemus State Water Resources Control Board 
David Williams, Bay Area Clean Water Agencies 
Mike Connor (Alternate), East Bay Dischargers 
Dyan Whyte (Alternate), San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board 
Amy Chastain (Alternate), Bay Area Clean Water Agencies 
Luisa Valiela (Alternate), U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 9 
Arleen Navarret (Alternate), San Francisco Public Utilities Commission 
Frank Leung, San Francisco Estuary Institute 
Rainer Hoenicke, San Francisco Estuary Institute 
 
Non-Members Present: 
Stephanie Seto, San Francisco Estuary Institute 
 
Others Present: 
Trish Mulvey, SFEI Board and CLEAN South Bay 
 
Call to Order 
Mr. Wolfe, Board Chair, called the meeting to order at 9:05 a.m. 
 
Public Comments 
SFEI Board Member, Trish Mulvey, asked if the ASC Regional Board participants might 
be willing to consider directing some Supplemental Environmental Project funds to 
projects that would be of benefit to the Regional Monitoring Program.  She also 
suggested the possibility of pooling "mandatory minimum" penalties for such a use.  The 
subject of using SEP funds in this fashion was first broached at the December RMP 
Technical Advisory Committee meeting, and there seemed to be interest in discussing 
how such project ideas could be identified and prioritized if the Regional Boards were 
willing to consider this suggestion. 
 
Consent Items 
Review and Approve Agenda 
Mr. Wolfe made a motion to approve all consent items, including the agenda and 
September 23, 2009 meeting minutes.  The motion was seconded by Mr. Polhemus and 
passed unanimously. 



 
Action Items 
Board Resolution for appointing a new Executive Director 
The Board reviewed the Resolution and determined to make the following modification: 

(a) Change Adopts Resolution 02-09 on the 14th day of December, 2009, following 
the vote on September 23, 2009 to Adopts Resolution 02-09 on the 14th day of 
December, 2009, following the vote on September 23, 2009 and hereby appoints 
Dr. Rainer Hoenicke as new Executive Director. 

 
Appointment of Officers 
The Board considered appointment of new Officers.  The Board unanimously voted to 
approve the appointment of Mr. Tucker as Board Chair, Ms. Creedon as Vice-
Chair/Secretary, and re-appoint Mr. Leung as Treasurer.  Mr. Wolfe made a motion to 
approve the appointments.  The motion was seconded by Mr. Polhemus and passed 
unanimously. 
 
Information and Discussion Items 
Updated 2009/2010 Program Plan 
Dr. Hoenicke discussed the highlights of projects funded through the Aquatic Science 
Center.  Once the RMP/SFEI/ASC budgets for the coming year have been finalized and 
approved by the SFEI Board, an email will be sent out to the ASC Board with the 
Program Plan attached.  Dr. Hoenicke provided the Board with a copy of the new and 
improved SFEI Scorecard.  He informed the Board that there has been a switch from the 
old Scorecard into a newsletter, which is more internal and reader friendly.  It will contain 
the old Scorecard content in addition to Technical Scientific Highlights.  
 
Project Updates 
Dr. Hoenicke provided a summary of the status of funded, suspended, and proposed 
projects.  Mr. Wolfe recommended that all ASC contracts be grouped together when 
presented on the Executive Director Report.   
 
Initiating a Strategic Planning Process for ASC in 2010 
The Board formed a strategic plan subcommittee, comprised of Mr. Polhemus, one 
representative each from RB 2 and RB 5, and a BACWA member to set up an efficient 
planning process, identify environmental priority issues and organizational/administrative 
improvements, and define desired planning outcomes. Dr. Hoenicke will ask Mr. 
Polhemus, who chaired the most recent SCCWRP strategic planning effort, and other 
subcommittee members to share with him their prep documents. 
 
Future Meeting Agenda Items and Meeting Schedule 
Future meeting items include Mercury TMDL implementation – risk management 
approaches in Region 2 and Region 5, Nutrient issues in the Delta and SF Bay – current 
state of knowledge, early action alternatives, and linkages to BDCP, and Stormwater 
BMPs and flow reductions– what have we learned in the last three years.  The next 
Board meetings are tentatively scheduled for March 4, 2010, June 3, 2010, September 
2, 2010, and December 2, 2010. 
 
 
 
 
 



Adjournment 
The meeting was adjourned at 12:15 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
____________________________  ____________________________ 
Pamela Creedon, Board Secretary  Date 
 
 
 
 















































Attachment 2 
 

Staff Summary 
 
 

TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM:  Rainer Hoenicke, Executive Director 
Date: March 4, 2010 
SUBJECT:  Draft Work Plan for Strategic Planning Effort 
 
 
Summary: At its December 2009 meeting, the ASC Board decided to conduct a 
one-day strategic planning workshop with senior staff, with a tentative date of 
September 2, 2010. Prior to setting a final date, the Board requested a scope for 
this effort to be able to evaluate if a strategic planning committee and executive 
staff could fit the additional workload into the Program Plan.  
 
Draft Work Plan:  The purpose of an off-site strategic planning workshop would 
be to: 

• generate Board and staff alignment of what our “niche” is,  
• determine if the ASC needs a distinct mission statement different from 

that of SFEI, 
• sketch out a clear pathway for moving initiatives into projects that 

complement each other and contribute to meeting the environmental 
challenges of the 21st century, thereby adding value to planning and 
management decisions.  

Additional goals may include an internal and external review of organizational 
effectiveness 

 
Tasks for Senior Staff: 

1) Develop statements of desired ASC contributions to informing and thereby 
changing the relationship between people and their environment. 
Timeline: January – April 2010. Vet with Strategic Planning Committee 
and prepare as discussion paper for Workshop. 
Estimated work effort: 50 hours 

2) Develop a white paper outlining how staff views the Institute’s and 
Center’s “niche.” What do we do that is different from: 

• NGOs with a “science bend” (e.g., PRBO Conservation Science, 
The Bay Institute, Natural Heritage Institute, Pacific Institute, PPIC, 
Planning and Conservation League);  

• special academic think tanks (e.g., Center for the American West, 
Tahoe Environmental Research Center, Information Center for the 
Environment) and research programs (e.g., Berkeley Institute for 
the Environment, UC Environmental Engineering; Romberg Tiburon 
Center); 

• private environmental consulting firms 

 1



• local agency “enterprise centers” serving multiple departments 
(e.g., GIS shops)? 

Reflect results in suggested mission statement. 
Timeline: January-April 2010.  
Estimated work effort: 20 hours 

3) Develop a concise summary of senior staff perspectives regarding science 
and information “needs” of public agencies, the private sector, watershed 
stewardship and environmental advocacy groups, and the engaged public 
in general 
This document could be comprised of a draft long-term research, 
assessment, and tool development plan, grouped by major focus areas. 
Timeline: April-July 2010. 
Estimated Work Effort: 150 hrs 

4) OPTIONAL - Retain and work with a consultant specializing in 
effectiveness surveys 
Following the SCCWRP example, polling various external entities, as well 
as staff regarding organizational strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, 
and threats, promises to outline a roadmap for creating greater 
effectiveness and impact of the Institute. 
Timeline and Estimated Work Effort: (a) develop RFP and bring consultant 
on board: April 2010; 40 hrs; (b) identify pool of survey participants and 
randomly select between 200-400: May 2010; 20 hrs; (c) evaluate survey 
results, following survey report submittal by contractor; 20 hrs. 

5) Hire a workshop facilitator and work with her/him to develop an annotated 
agenda and vet with Strategic Planning Committee 
Specify desired outcomes of the workshop, including but not limited to: 

• Prioritization of research, monitoring, and assessment support to 
federal, state, and local agencies 

• Confirmation or modifications to needs assessment by senior staff 
based on recent projects and initiatives (e.g., Critical Coastal Areas 
Program, Estuary Partnership strategic planning effort, Bay Area 
Flood Protection Agencies Association, Bay Area Clean Water 
Agencies, Bay Area Stormwater Management Agencies 
Association, BCDC Climate Change Adaptation Plan, CV-SALTS 
(Central Valley Salinity Alternatives for Long-Term Sustainability); 
Bay-Delta Conservation Plan and Coastal Conservancy Climate 
Change Policy and Project Selection support) 

• Alignment of SFEI Board composition with new challenges and 
opportunities 

Timeline: March-July 2010 
Estimated Work Effort: 100 hrs  

6) Select a workshop venue 
Find and secure a centrally located location for the one-day workshop in 
close coordination with Strategic Planning Committee. 
Timeline: March 2010 
Estimated Work Effort: 20 hours 

 2



 
Total Estimated Staff Hours (not including optional task involving 
contractor and SWOT survey): 340 hours=$43,000 
 
Tasks for Board Members (including those serving on the Strategic 
Planning Committee) 
1) Review draft staff documents, meetings/phone conferences  
Timeline: April-July 2010 
Estimated Work Effort: 40 hours for each committee member; 8 hours for 
each board member. 
 
2) Review workshop agenda with facilitator and develop “script” for 

workshop event 
Timeline: May-July 2010 
Estimated Work Effort: 10 hours for each committee member 
 
Estimated Contractor Costs: 
Facilitator: $12,000 
Organizational Effectiveness Consultant (optional): $15,000 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 3



Attachment 3 
 

Staff Summary 
 
 

TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM:  Rainer Hoenicke, Executive Director 
Date: March 4, 2010 
SUBJECT:  2009/10 Program Plan Amendment 
 
 
The publicly owned treatment works and industrial dischargers, as well as the municipal 
storm water programs, are under two separate permits to implement mercury and PCB 
TMDLs. As part of their respective NPDES permits, the dischargers are required to 
develop and implement a human health risk reduction strategy.  BACWA has 
approached the Aquatic Science Center with a request to assist in this effort.  
 
Recommended Action: Approve amendment to the 2009/10 Program Plan to include 
implementation assistance for a San Francisco Bay Risk Reduction Program involving 
multiple partner agencies. 
 
JOINT BACWA-WSPA RISK REDUCTION PROGRAM PROPOSAL 
 
Based on conversations with multiple interested parties, BACWA and WSPA 
intend to develop and implement a risk reduction program similar to the Fish 
Mercury Project, funded by CALFED and completed in 2008.  This approach was 
selected over a clinic-based program because it allows for greater community 
and stakeholder participation in the development and implementation of risk 
communication strategies, the importance of which has been emphasized by the 
NEJAC.   
 
Additionally, OEHHA anticipates making revisions to its current, interim, advisory 
for San Francisco Bay.  The timing of this revision presents an opportunity to 
involve diverse stakeholders, including CBOs, community members, local 
departments of health, and others, in creating a strategy to communicate this 
new advisory.  Provided that the development of a new advisory proceeds on the 
expected timeline, this project will result in the identification of communication 
approaches that can be used throughout the Bay Area.   
 

A. Partners  
 
The Aquatic Science Center (ASC), a joint powers authority, has preliminary 
been identified to provide fiscal administration and coordination support for the 
project. ASC staff was the lead for the Fish Mercury Project and has experience 
in coordinating multiple partners effectively, and create synergies among multiple 
related projects.  
 



BACWA has worked closely with CDPH, the Water Board, WSPA, and BASMAA 
to develop this proposal.  CDPH, because of its public health expertise, will take 
the lead in implementing the risk reduction program.  Implementation of the 
program will involve these organizations and agencies as well as a broad range 
of other stakeholders including, but not limited to, CBOs, non-profit organizations, 
local governmental agencies, individual community members, and the Water 
Board.   
 
Support for the program will be provided by CDPH, BACWA, WSPA and 
BASMAA.   CDPH will provide substantial in-kind contributions.  BACWA and 
WSPA have secured sufficient funding to initiate the program.  BACWA, WSPA, 
and BASMAA are currently pursuing additional sources and expect to have more 
information about available funding later this year. The Aquatic Science Center 
(ASC), a joint powers authority, has preliminary been identified to provide support 
and coordination for the project.   



Amendment to 2009/10 ASC Program Plan 

March 4, 2010 

 

San Francisco Bay Fish Risk Reduction Program (Estimated Amount: 
$150,000-$300,000 per year) 

 The Aquatic Science Center has been identified as a program coordinator and 
fiscal agent for a program to reduce the exposure of certain populations to 
contaminants in San Francisco Bay fish.  An interim fish consumption advisory is 
in place for Bay fish as a result of elevated levels of mercury, PCBs, and other 
chemicals.  This advisory has also resulted in the placement of the Bay on the 
State’s list of impaired waterbodies.  The program will build on the Delta Fish 
Mercury Project and will include the convening of a diverse stakeholder advisory 
group, development of a broad risk communication strategy, a grant and support 
program for community-based organizations to implement risk reduction efforts 
appropriate for their communities, and a program effectiveness evaluation.  The 
program is expected to begin in the summer of 2010 with the establishment of 
the stakeholder advisory group (SAG).  The SAG will meet three to four times 
each year to provide input on the risk reduction strategy and the CBO grant-
making process.  The program will be fully implemented and evaluated by 2013.  
  

Preliminary Budget for Two Years: 

Convene SAG and Develop Risk Communication Strategy         90,000

Award and Oversee Mini-Grant Program                                    170,000

Evaluation                                                                                      40,000

Total                                                                                             $300,000     

  

 
 
 


